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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This market study highlights the insight of the vanilla island named Madagascar. It points out the history, 
political and economic state of the country, as it all started when a large number of migrants from different 
continents called today the Malagasy immigrated unto the island. As the years passed by, the island is still 
listed among the poorest countries of the world with a very young population which gives them a 
comparative advantage in terms of labor. Despite that, the country has gone through a long political 
disturbance during the past. Up until recently, when a democratic election took place and gave victory to 
President Andry Rajoelina. Leading to a high level of corruption and insecurities. Madagascar is governed 
as a semi presidential republic, whereby the central bank plays the major role of stabilizing the currency, 
with various banks and financial institutions. Furthermore, the report digs into the industrial sector of the 
country by looking at the main contributors to the GDP which are exports and household consumption, 
with the European union listed as the main export trading partner and China the main import trading 
partner. The vanilla and apparels are the main exporting items. A few Malagasy companies that trade with 
countries outside of their borders have been listed. Over the years, the island has learned to open its 
borders to the world by organizing yearly trade fair events to encourage foreign investments. Nevertheless, 
certain rules and regulation are imposed on foreign businesses such as tax percentages, import laws and 
phytosanitary law depending on the trading items. Companies are taxed according to their revenues and 
their sector of activities, with the general VAT rate fixed at 20%. The country has various associations, 
federations and institutions listed below which contribute to the development of sectoral actives and 
communities' evolution. Nonetheless, Belgian presence is not that vivid on this beautiful island. 
 
 
ACRONYMS 

AREMA Association pour la renaissance de 
Madagascar  

MAPAR  Miaraka Aminy i Perezida Andry Rajoelina  

ASBL Association Sans But Lucratif  MGA  Malagasy Ariary  
CIA  Central Intelligence Agency  NGO  Non-Governmental Organisation  
CIPENS  Carte d'Identité Professionnelle pour les 

Étrangers Non-Salariés  
NIF  Numéro d’Identification Fiscale  

COMESA  Common Market for Eastern and Southern 
Africa  

UN  United Nation  

EUR  Euro / European Monetary Unit  US  United States  
FOB  Free on Board  USD  United States Dollar  
GDP  Gross Domestic Product  SADC  Southern African Development Community  
ID  Identity / Identification  TIM  Tiako I Madagascar  
IMF  International Monetary Fund  TGV  Tanora malaGasy Vonona  
LEADER-Fanilo  Libéralisme Économique et Action 

Démocratique pour la Reconstruction 
Nationale  

VAT  Value Added Tax 
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1. INTRODUCTION 
Established in the 17th century, Madagascar is the fifth largest Indian ocean island country of the world 
located on the southern side near the African continent about 400 kilometers off the coast of East Africa 
across the Mozambique Channel 1, with a land mass of 587,000 km2 and 27,534,354 inhabitants called the 
Malagasy, whereby 60% of the population are youth under the age of 25. The island has a diverse range of 
ethnicities and exceptional tradition and history. Throughout the 18th to the 19th centuries, Madagascar 
experienced a strong pirate hold whereby the place was used as a slave trading center mostly by the Merina 
Kingdom. These practices are still apparent in today’s lifestyle of the Malagasy especially when it comes to 
accessing education and jobs. The island was then conquered by the French in 1896, who made it a colony; 
on 26 June 1960 they regained their independence.   
 
In the ancient times many people from different cultural backgrounds came to discover the island resulting 
in them settling down. Today one can find 18 main ethnic groups which are: 

 Malayo-Indonesian (Merina and Betsileo), 
 Cotiers (mixed African, Malayo-Indonesian, and Arab ancestry - Betsimisaraka, Tsimihety, Antaisaka, 

Sakalava), 
 French, Indian, Creole, Comoran.  

The main spoken language is Malagasy which is spoken by 99.9% of the population. Other Official languages 
are French, which is spoken by 23.6% of the population, and English which is spoken by 8.2% of the 
population.  

 
The country is tropical along coast, temperate in land, arid in the south, with provinces named: 
Antananarivo, Antsiranana, Fianarantsoa, Mahajanga, Toamasina, Toliara. The Capital city is Antananarivo 
which is located on the center of the island. The land is gifted with a unique flora and fauna that can only 
be found on their land, an unspoiled coastline and incomparable biodiversity, precious minerals, rare species 
and unexploited spaces. Yet, it has the highest poverty rates in the world with a poor infrastructure and 
connectivity2. Madagascar has six provinces, 22 regions and 1,693 communes. Madagascar is as a deprived 
country compared to other countries in Africa. According to the world bank, very few Malagasies are able 
to live above $3.10 a day. 80% of the population live in rural areas where the poverty rate is very high and 
are deprived of having access to basic human needs such as literacy, education, electricity, healthcare, 
consumption and so on. 
  

 
1 the official World Bank website: https://www.worldbank.org/en/country/madagascar/overview  
2 The World Bank 2020: Madagascar - Country Economic Memorandum: Scaling Success - Building a Resilient Economy (English). Washington, D.C.: 
World Bank Group. http://documents.worldbank.org/curated/en/699781575279412305/Madagascar-Country-Economic-Memorandum-Scaling-
Success-Building-a-Resilient-Economy  
 

https://www.worldbank.org/en/country/madagascar/overview
http://documents.worldbank.org/curated/en/699781575279412305/Madagascar-Country-Economic-Memorandum-Scaling-Success-Building-a-Resilient-Economy
http://documents.worldbank.org/curated/en/699781575279412305/Madagascar-Country-Economic-Memorandum-Scaling-Success-Building-a-Resilient-Economy
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MAP: MADAGASCAR 

 
SOURCE: UN Geospatial Madagascar, 2020. 

1.1 POLITICAL FRAMEWORK 

Madagascar is still in a very frail state, with governance challenges, their political condition has long been 
persecuted by colonialism and military dictatorship. Leading to the very poor ranking by major 
international institutions using indicators such as: the Ibrahim Index of African Governance, whereby it 
took the 35th place with a score of 44.4 out of 100 in 20203 compared to 2009 where it took the 9th place. 

 
3 MO IBRAHIM Foundation: 2020 Ibrahim Index of African Governance – Index Report 
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We also have the Corruption Perceptions Index of Transparency International, whereby it took the 149th 

place in 2020 out of 179 countries, with a score of 25 out of 1004.   
 
One can find five main political parties within the island such as: AREMA, LEADER/Fanilo, TIM, MAPAR and 
IRD. Meanwhile it has already encountered four republics with 12 presidential elections, 11 legislative 
elections and seven referendums. The current president is Andry Rajoelina part of the TGV/MAPAR political 
party, who took office in 20195. The constitution of the fourth republic has 168 articles stipulating that: 

 Freedom of assembly, association and expression are allowed as long as it does not over denigrate 
the government and defaming. 

 The president is elected for a five-year term, with no more than two terms. 

There are 230 registered political parties, 800 association and NGOs, whereby the majority are based in 
Antananarivo. 
 
The country has a very weak security sector with very poor working conditions, as most of the workers 
have low wages and outdated equipment and the government has complete control on the security forces 
of the country. Administrative structures within the country although present, lack decentralization and 
fiscal autonomy. Government duties such as providing accommodation, nutrition and medical assistance 
are usually performed by international institutions or nationals and are concentrated in the capital city. 
 
According to the outdated Malagasy nationality code (1960), only residents with Malagasy descendent are 
entitled to the Malagasy nationality. Malagasies have freedom to adhere any religious groups.  
 
Unfortunately, Corruption in Madagascar is very much present, this is why various institutions such as the 
Independent Anti-Corruption Bureau (Bureau independent anti-corruption BTI BIANCO), the Comité pour la 
sauvegarde de l’intégrité (CSI), the Service de renseignements financier (SAMIFIN) and the Pôles anti-
corruption (PAC), have been designed to fight against it. Another issue is lack of government transparency 
and judicial independence leading to mob violence and unlawful killings. Although discrimination is legally 
prohibited, women according to tradition are still secluded from having equal opportunities6. 

1.2 ECONOMIC FRAMEWORK 

The Currency used is the Malagasy ariary (MG), whereby 100 Malagasy ariary = 0.022 EUR = 0.026 US Dollar. 
The country has great potential in terms of natural resources, but poverty still persists, with a rate of 76% 
in 2017. The island is known to be the largest supplier of vanilla (Bourbon vanilla) of the world, whereby 
80% of the vanilla comes from the SAVA region in the northeastern coast which is a major economic and 
political force. However, they are very vulnerable in that domain, especially vanilla growers who are not 
rewarded fairly by buyers.  
 
  

 
4 Transparency International the global coalition against corruption: https://www.transparency.org/en/cpi/2020/table/mdg  
5 USAID, Jul 2021: https://www.usaid.gov/madagascar/back-on-the-path-to-democracy    
6 Bertelsmann Stiftung, BTI 2020 Country Report — Madagascar. Gütersloh: Bertelsmann Stiftung, 2020. 

https://www.transparency.org/en/cpi/2020/table/mdg
https://www.usaid.gov/madagascar/back-on-the-path-to-democracy
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You will find various vanilla cooperatives such as the: 
 Fikambanana Tantsaha Tsara Vokatra (FTTV) - The Good Farmers' Cooperative 
 Ranomafana Vanilla Cooperative 
 Koperativa Mpambolin'Ambanivolo Mananara (KOMAM) 
 COOPPVM 
 MITSINJO 

The economy is based on Agriculture, fishing and forestry which accounts for more than one-fourth of GDP 
and employs roughly 80% of the population. The largest farmers confederation is FEKRITAMA. Food security 
and human development in Madagascar are very pressing matters which is caused by repeated natural 
disasters such as deforestation and erosion, which also create serious concerns to the agriculture 
dependent economy7. 
 

According to the central intelligence agency (CIA), the Gross domestic product was at 13.964 billion USD 
(2019), with household consumption and export contributing by 67.1% and 31.5% to the GDP respectively. 
Madagascar is planning on establishing a special economic zone in partnership with Mauritius. The country 
is part of the World Trade Organization (WTO), in addition to also being a member of several regional 
economic communities such as COMESA, SADC and the Indian Ocean Commission (IOC). However, the 
European union is the largest trading partner of the country when it comes to exports, in terms of import 
we have China shown in table 1.   
 
Table1: Main trading partners of Madagascar 
 
COUNTRIES EXPORT (%) IMPORT (%) 
European union 42.7 ----- 
China 6.7 24 
France 18 11 
India 5 7 
Japan 6 ----- 
Germany 5 ----- 
United Arab Emirates 7 9 
South Africa ----- 5 
United States 19 ----- 

Source: cia 2021 8 
  

 
7 CIA Official website, Sep 2021: Madagascar - The World Factbook (cia.gov) 
 
8 CIA Official website, Sep 2021: Madagascar - The World Factbook (cia.gov)  
 

https://www.cia.gov/the-world-factbook/countries/madagascar/


 //////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////// 
 
pagina 8 van 25 Introduction to the economical market in Madagascar  

Madagascar has a well-established central bank, working as the sole monitor of the currency stability. There 
are eleven commercial banks listed below: 

 BMOI Group BCP: www.bmoinet.net  
 BNI Madagascar: www.bni.mg 
 MCB Madagascar: www.mcbmadagascar.com 
 SBM bank: www.globalpresence.sbmgroup.mu/madagascar 
 BFV-SGM (Société Générale Madagascar): www.societegenerale.mg 
 BOA (Bank Of Africa): www.boa.mg 
 ABM (Accès Banque Madagascar); www.accesbanque.mg 
 BGFI Bank: https://madagascar.groupebgfibank.com/     
 BMM -BCP: www.bcpbank.mu  
 SIPEM Bank: www.sipembanque.mg  
 BAOBAB – MICROCRED: www.microcred.com/mg  

The country has six non-financial institutions and thirty-one microfinance institutions9. An increase in 
investment is expected, especially for sectors such as tourism, infrastructure, telecoms and textiles. 
Madagascar obtained access to the US market due to the high number of exported apparels, however failure 
to abide by the rule of the African Growth and Opportunity Act (AGOA) led to a fall in the production of 
textile, a fall of the GDP and a loss of jobs. The island is currently on a very low starting point due to the 
pre-coup strategy. The country has a weak financial system which restricts the implementation of monetary 
policy, the IMF and the world bank have been of great help to restore the country10. 

  

 
9 Bertelsmann Stiftung, BTI 2020 Country Report — Madagascar. Gütersloh: Bertelsmann Stiftung, 2020 
10 CIA Official website, Sep 2021: Madagascar - The World Factbook (cia.gov) 

http://www.bmoinet.net/
https://madagascar.groupebgfibank.com/
http://www.bcpbank.mu/
http://www.microcred.com/mg
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2. ECONOMIC SECTORS 
There has been a structural change in the economy since 2000, especially in the services and industrial 
sectors, leading to a major change in the secondary sector because of a hostile business environment 
caused by a struggle to access the market, political instability and change in commodity prices. Although 
agriculture is the main source of employment, the country still has natural resources such as: graphite, 
chromite, coal, bauxite, rare earth elements, salt, quartz, tar sands, semiprecious stones, mica, fish, 
hydropower.   
 
As mentioned above the sector that contributes the most to the GDP is still agriculture, which accounts 
for 24%, followed by industry with 19.5% and services with 56.4%. The main agricultural products are: rice, 
sugar cane, cassava, sweet potatoes, milk, vegetables, bananas, mangoes/guavas, tropical fruit, potatoes, 
with the main industries products to be: meat processing, seafood, soap, beer, leather, sugar, textiles, 
glassware, cement, automobile assembly plant, paper, petroleum, tourism, mining.  
 
Export from Madagascar amounts to mostly 5 billion USD a year. The main export items are vanilla, nickel, 
gold, clothing and apparel, gemstones. Import also amounts to roughly around 5 billion USD a year, with 
its main items to be: refined petroleum, rice, cars, packaged medicines, clothing and apparel. Foreign 
exchange and gold reserve is more than 1 billion USD a year. The island takes the 132nd place compared to 
other countries in the world, and in terms of doing business it was ranked as the 88th 11. A list of several 
exporting and importing companies and their commodities operating in Madagascar is shown in the table 
below. 

Table 1: TRADING COMPANIES IN MADAGASCAR  
 

COMPANY TRADE COMMODITY WEBSITE 
RedIsland Impex 
Madagascar 

Export Cloves, pepper and vanilla, cacao www.redislandimpex.mg  

Promabio SARL Export Vanilla www.promabio.com  
Phael flor export Export Bourbon vanilla beans, clove, ginger, pepper, 

turmeric 
www.phaelflorexport.com  

Madagascar Spices 
Company 

Export Vanilla, cacao, coffee and pepper www.madagascarspices.com  

Mada market export Export Cloves, clove stem, vanilla bean, plan folia, pepper, 
spice, black eyed bean, cashew nuts 

www.madagascar-market.com  

Agroman SA Export Pepper, Cloves, Cinnamon, Ginger, Turmeric, Wild 
pepper, Vanilla, Pepper, nutmeg, Coffee, Kaffir lime, 
Lemon, Banana 

www.agroma-madagascar.com  

Floribis vaynilla SARL Export Vanilla pod and essential oil www.floribis.mg  
Galana Export Crude il, natural gas, gasoline, heating oil, Gold, 

Silver, copper 
www.galanapetroleum.com  

Habibo group Export Rafia www.habibo.mg  
Actual Textiles Export Apparels www.actualtextiles.com  
Flexknit Export Textiles, knitwear www.flexknit.com  

  

 
11 CIA Official website, Sep 2021: Madagascar - The World Factbook (cia.gov) 

http://www.redislandimpex.mg/
http://www.promabio.com/
http://www.phaelflorexport.com/
http://www.madagascarspices.com/
http://www.madagascar-market.com/
http://www.agroma-madagascar.com/
http://www.floribis.mg/
http://www.galanapetroleum.com/
http://www.habibo.mg/
http://www.actualtextiles.com/
http://www.flexknit.com/
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COMPANY TRADE COMMODITY WEBSITE 
Aromeya Export Essential oils www.aromeya.com  
Zebu Coffee Export Coffee https://www.facebook.com/Zebu-

Coffee  
Nivo Export Household cleaning products, beauty products and 

food suplements 
 

Trimeta agro food Export Spices such as vanilla cloves. Essential oils www.trimeta-agrofood.mg  
MCI 
(MadagascarChimie 
Industries) 

Import Chemical products 
 
 

www.mci.mg  
 

Galana 
 

Import Galana, Crude il, natural gas, Gasoline, heating oil, 
Gold, Silver, copper. 

www.galanapetroleum.com  

Vivi energy 
madagascar 

Import Shell fuels and lubricants 
 

www.vivoenergy.com  

Ganesha Enterprises Import 
Export 

Agricultural product https://www.facebook.com/ganeshae
nterprises87/  

SIAM Import Food goods from Thailande https://www.facebook.com/SIAM-
Madagascar-110063739535258/  

Groupe Bassan Import   

 

  

http://www.aromeya.com/
https://www.facebook.com/Zebu-Coffee
https://www.facebook.com/Zebu-Coffee
http://www.trimeta-agrofood.mg/
http://www.mci.mg/
http://www.galanapetroleum.com/
http://www.vivoenergy.com/
https://www.facebook.com/ganeshaenterprises87/
https://www.facebook.com/ganeshaenterprises87/
https://www.facebook.com/SIAM-Madagascar-110063739535258/
https://www.facebook.com/SIAM-Madagascar-110063739535258/
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3. TRADE FAIRS 
Madagascar has various trade shows which take place in the capital city each year, it regroups national 
and international investors, businesses and many more.  

 THE INTERNATIONAL FAIR OF MADAGASCAR (FIM) 

A tradition which started in 2005, with the goal of creating a great space for business exchange and create 
a favorable business atmosphere as well as encourage international economic activities on the island. The 
thirteenth edition took place between 3 - 6th of May 2018 at the Forello Expo Tanjombato exhibition center. 
The theme was: "The Vita Malagasy is open to the world”. It regroups national and international 
participants, including companies from different backgrounds. 
 
In terms of main exhibitors outside of the island there is France, Mauritius and Indonesia, although local 
business owners are the majority. The previous year the theme was promoting women entrepreneurship 
and entrepreneurs from the Indian ocean12. The next one is supposed to be on the 16th of September 2021, 
unfortunately the exact date for 2022 has not yet been stipulated13. 
 

Pictures :13th edition of the International Fair of Madagascar (FIM) 

 

 SALON INTERNATIONAL HABITAT (SIH) and SALON INTERNATIONAL DES TRANSPORTS, DE LA 
LOGISTIQUE ET DE LA MANUTENTION (SITLM) 

Biannual trade fairs with the next edition taking place between 21 – 24 October 2021. SHI in collaboration 
with FIM is organized for the sole purpose of bringing together professionals in building: materials and 
electricity, housing: outside and interior designs, insurance, and solar energy. While SITLM has a purpose of 
helping companies to reach another level of performance by using innovative software, it started in 2019. 

 FOIRE INTERNATIONALE DE L'AGRICULTURE (FIA) 

Happens every two years in the capital city, it’s a major economic event, which focuses on agriculture and 
food processing. It regroups countries across the Indian ocean. The next edition will take place between 18 
– 21 November 202114. 

 
12 FIM, 2021: FIM Foire Internationale de Madagascar (foire-internationale-de-madagascar.com) 
13 Events eye; Trade Shows Worldwide - Antananarivo (Madagascar) - 2021/2022 (eventseye.com) 
14 Events eye; Trade Shows Worldwide - Antananarivo (Madagascar) - 2021/2022 (eventseye.com) 

http://www.foire-internationale-de-madagascar.com/
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4. GOVERNMENT STRUCTURES 
Government in Madagascar can be divided into three main spheres: The Executive, which includes the 
president who is the chief of state, elected by the population. Along with its prime minister who is the 
head of government, appointed by the president. The Legislative that has a bicameral parliament. And the 
Supreme Court, which includes the High Constitutional Court, the Courts of Appeal and Courts of First 
Instance15. 
 
In the table hereunder you will find the contact details of the most relevant Government Ministries in 
Madagascar. 
 
Table 2: Government ministries 
 
MINISTRIES NAME WEBSITE 
MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS Mr. Patrick Rajoelina, www.diplomtie.gov.mg 
MINISTRY OF ECONOMY AND FINANCE Mrs. Rindra Hasimbelo 

Rabarinirinarison 
www.mef.gov.mg 

MINISTER OF INDUSTRIALIZATION, TRADE AND 
CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

Mr. Edgard Razafindravahy www.mica.gov.mg 

MINISTRY OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND LAND 
SERVICES 

Mr. Hajo Andrianainarivelo www.matp.gov.mg 

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT, TOURISM AND 
METEOROLOGY 

Mr. Joël Randriamandranto www.confederation-tourisme.mg 

MINISTRY FISHING AND THE BLUE ECONOMY Dr Tsimanaoraty Paubert Mahatante  
MINISTRY AGRICULTURE AND LIVESTOCK Mr. Harifidy Ramilison www.maep.gov.mg 
MINISTER OF DIGITAL DEVELOPMENT, DIGITAL 
TRANSFORMATION, POSTS AND 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

Mr. Tahiana Razafindramalo www.mptdn.gov.mg 

MINISTRY OF ENERGY AND HYDROCARBONS Mr. Andry Ramaroson www.meeh.gov.mg 
 

MINISTRY OF COMMUNICATION AND CULTURE Mrs. Rakotondrazafy Andriatongarivo 
Lalatiana 
 

www.mcc.gov.mg 
 

MINISTRY OF MINES AND STRATEGIC 
RESOURCES 

Mr. Brice Randrianasolo www.omnis.mg 
 

MINISTER OF ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 

Mrs. Baomiavotse Vahinala 
Raharinirina 

www.environment.mg 

 

  

 
15 ENS Africa: 2020, doing business in Madagascar. 

http://www.mica.gov.mg/
http://www.mptdn.gov.mg/
http://www.meeh.gov.mg/
http://www.omnis.mg/
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5. GENERAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS  
According to the investment Law No. 2007-036 dated 14 January 2008, Madagascar law encourages foreign 
investment integration, by giving them the right to acquire land. However, the majority shareholder should 
be nationals, with a permanent resident manager. Although the law does allow the employment of 
foreigners, qualified Malagasy are the most preferred on the list. Listed below are different regulations 
imposed on import, export and how foreign companies can setup, including taxes fares16. 

5.1 COMPANY TAX 

Madagascar Tax year varies for each company, but the actual tax year calendar starts from the 1st of January 
to 31st of December. The normal VAT rate is 20%. Company (corporate) tax in Madagascar, normally called 
a residence-based tax system is when the company is embodied with a permanent residence within the 
country. There are two ways of being taxed based on the company gross revenue. 
 
A company (corporate) and individual that has a permanent residence within the country, with an annual 
gross revenue of more than MGA 200 million are taxed at a rate of 20% for corporate income tax. While a 
Corporate and individual with an annual gross revenue of less than MGA 200 million are taxed at a rate of 
5% on 70% of turnover, with a minimum tax of MGA 16 000.  
 
Companies that fall under the corporate income tax regime are liable to a minimum tax, despite their type 
of activities: 

 MGA 100 000 with 0.5% of turnover (excluding VAT) for companies carrying on industrial, mining, 
agriculture, artisanal, tourism or transport activities;  

 MGA 320 000 plus 0.5% of turnover (excluding VAT) for other companies. 17 

5.2 IMPORT REGULATIONS 

Imports license in Madagascar is regulated by the government and is only required for a specific group of 
items such as: arms, explosives, drugs diamonds, gemstones, gold/ platinum jewelry, vanilla, tobacco leaf 
and lubricants. Nevertheless, the import of items such as: nuclear power stations radioactive waste, 
pornographic materials, imitated and illegal goods are forbidden18. Madagascar requires the importer to 
have a: shipment tracking note called BSC (bordereau de suivi des cargaisons), shipment bill, trade invoice, 
packing list, insurance certificate, original and copy of tax registration, certificate of origin. However, in 
order to import perishable food, the cover should have: the name of the food listed in English or French 
including a registration number, its provenance, the expiration date, the ingredient list, the storage process, 
the manufacturer name and registration number and the use of the product 19. 
 
According to articles 1-6 within order n° 13312/2015, taking into consideration the procedures and 
obligations of domiciliation and payment of imports, in order for imports to be made, the importer will 

 
16 World Trade organization: http://ptadb.wto.org/Country.aspx?code=450 
17 ENS Africa, 2020. Doing Business in Madagascar. 
18 International Trade Administration, 2020: Madagascar - Prohibited and Restricted Imports (trade.gov) 
19 Export Entreprises SA, 2021: phttps://www.objectif-import-export.fr/en/internationalmarketplaces/country/madagascar/regulations-customs 

http://ptadb.wto.org/Country.aspx?code=450
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need to have a certified mediator by whom he/she will acquire a file (domiciliation file) with a number 
containing all documents relating to the imports valid for a period of 12 months before the release of goods. 
This file requires a proforma invoice or a commercial contract established by the foreign supplier who will 
carry out banking procedures for the transaction. Examples of goods which are not subjected to 
domiciliation goods of a commercial nature with an FOB value of less than or equal to EUR 1,000 goods 
are: vehicles, imported by international travelers or persons residing in Madagascar intended for their 
personal use or their relatives; imported goods within the free zones area and companies whose payment 
depend on the foreign currency account20. 
 

Customs duties is a vital source of revenue for the island, it ranges from 5% to 20%, which is adjusted 
every year according to the budget. 40% of the imports, including beverages, fisheries, flora and fauna, and 
textiles within the country are taxed at 20% customs duties. However, countries within trade agreements 
with Madagascar do not pay any import tax21. 

5.3 SETTING UP A BUSINESS 

Madagascar is a very welcoming country especially when it comes to doing business, procedures do not 
linger. According to the Bertelsmann Stiftung’s Transformation Index (BTI) report, it only takes eight days 
and five procedures to start a new business, costing only 33% of the average income per capita. Investment 
in Madagascar is ruled according to Law N° 2007-036 of 14 January 2008 and decree N° 2006-382 of 31 May 
2006, which formed the Economic Development Board of Madagascar (EDBM). The mission of the agency is 
to enable the approval of investment projects, to promote and develop investments in Madagascar, acting 
as a one-stop-shop.  
 
In order to start a business, a company first needs to register with this institution through the investment 
one-stop shop, the first steps are: 

 Apply for a tax identification number (NIF) at the Ministry of Finance and Budget (MFB) /Directorate 
General of Taxes (DGI), through a process called NIFONLINE. This process only takes 1 day, free of 
charge. 

 Register with the National Statistics Institute (Institut National de la Statistique Malgache, INSTAT); 
this step takes 4 days. 

 Fees include: 
• Commercial registration fee: MGA 16,000  
• Deed registration costs: MGA 2,000  
• Institut National de la Statistique Malgache (INSTAT) registration costs: MGA 40,000  
• Tax Authority registration cost: 0.5% of share capital  
• Provisional income tax: MGA 320,000 

 Apply at the Trade and Registry Court for a Trade and Company Registry (Registre des Commerces 
et des Sociétés, RCS) number at the Ministry of Justice (MINJUS). 

 
20 Droit Afrique, 2020: Madagascar, domiciliation et Paiement des opérations d'importation de marchandises 
21 International Trade Administration, 2020: Madagascar - Import Tariffs (trade.gov) 
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 Register employees at the National Social Security Fund (Caisse Nationale de Prevoyance Sociale 
(CNAPS). This only takes 1 day and is free of charge. 

 Companies also need to register their employees for health insurance with a medical aid.   

 Companies need to register with the Organisation Sanitaire Tananarivienne Inter Entreprises 
(“OSTIE”), which is free of charge, unless they prefer using the services of a public insurance. 

 According to the Labour Code, Companies need to hand in a statement stipulating the starting date 
of activities to the labor inspector. After the employee's registration. It is free of charge and takes 1 
day. 

 The final phase takes a week, companies register at the Guichet Unique de creation d'entreprise of 
the EDBM22. 

Businesses in Madagascar are sometimes rewarded according to the sector of activities in which they 
operate. Those operating within the free zone, transportation of hydrocarbons, microfinance, and mining 
are entitled to special tax treatment and advantages. Companies producing and supplying renewable energy 
within the agriculture, industries, tourism construction and public sector benefit of a reduction on the tax 
due. Members of the certified management and accounting center also receive a tax reduction23. 

5.4 COMMERCIAL LAW 

All Businesses operate under a commercial law. According to law n° 2003-036 On Commercial Companies, 
all companies need to be registered and have a unique name with physical offices, well-established statutes 
and the duration of their existence cannot be more than ninety-nine years.  
 
Articles 1-26 of the inter-ministerial decree n° 35255/2013, regulating the general conditions of vanilla 
marketing in Madagascar, state that the marketing of Vanilla in Madagascar needs to be done within the 
framework of a controlled market, whereby identification cards are given to the farmer, collector and the 
supplier which can be renewed every year. In order to be a vanilla collector or agent, the person needs to: 
have an identification number, enroll with the trade register, get a professional ID card for unremunerated 
foreigners called CIPENS, have a store license issued by the regional department in charge of packaging and 
quality control and after all the formalities, a tax registration needs to be done before getting the card. 
The purchase or sale of green vanilla in Madagascar before the opening campaign date is prohibited.  
 
According to law dated 2009, Vanilla was sold at 4000 ariary per kg to the producer. While in bulk it is sold 
at 35000 ariary per kg. The minimum FOB export price is 27 USD per kg24. Lately the price has been 
fluctuating, due to natural disasters and the covid-19 crisis. Article 24 clearly states that in order to access 
the export market of vanilla, approval needs to be given by the regional director of commerce (DRC). 

 
22 World Bank Group, 2020. Economic profile Madagascar, Doing business in madagascar. 
23 ENS Africa, 2020. Doing business in Madagascar. 
24 the interministerial decree n 4713/2009: droit civil | Etat civil | responsabilité civile | nationalité Malagasy | Madagascar (cnlegis.gov.mg) 
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5.5 PHYTOSANITARY REGULATIONS 

Law n° 86-017 endorsing decree n° 86-013 of September 17, 1986, relates to phytosanitary legislation in 
Madagascar, with the purpose of protecting national plants and its products once introduced on the 
country’s soil and fight against harmful creatures by spreading phytosanitary protection techniques. This 
decree encourages the export of plants and plants products, in order to do so a phytosanitary certificate 
will need to be acquired from the plant protection services, however all expenses regarding the export will 
be paid by the exporter.  
 
Regarding the importation of plants and its products, all imported plants and its products need to be kept 
in a healthy condition in order to import, a valid import permit of a six-month period which can be collected 
from the quarantine plant service will be needed, then the importer will get a stamp duty. Only plants with 
a phytosanitary certificate valid for a period of 14 days before shipment are allowed to enter the country. 
However, authorities will have to inspect the plants and all its products upon arrival. In case they do not 
meet the required condition, they would have to be disinfected, disinfested, sterilized and cleaned25.  

 
Therefore according to the phytosanitary law, the minister of agriculture prohibits the import of damaging 
organisms considered to be harmful into the country unless it comes for experiments and research 
purposes. All owners of the plants and its products are required to have their own land and gardens 
including stores, once all requirements have been met, then they will be handed out a phytosanitary control 
card. 
 

  

 
25 order n ° 4736/2002 regulating the importation of plants and plant products signed by the minister of agriculture and livestock. 
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6. ASSOCIATIONS AND FEDERATIONS 
 SAHANALA: is a nonprofit association that has been created in 2010 in order to address and fight for the 

right of local communities, especially farmers. Its goal is to make sure that local communities learn about 
international markets and also support biodiversity in their region. Website: www.sahanala.net 

 FCCIM (Fédération des Chambres de Commerce et d'Industrie de Madagascar): Federation of commerce 
and industry in Madagascar is an Institution that brings together, leads and federates a Network of 24 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry spread over the 22 regions of the Big Island, to support and help 
their members as well as the operators of the Malagasy Private Sector. Email: federationcci@gmail.com 

 FHORM (La Fédération des Hôteliers et Restaurateurs de Madagascar): the federation regroups 306 
professional hotels and restaurants located in all regions of the island; it is the largest tourism 
association in Madagascar. Its main purpose is to protect and defend the right of its members and 
initiate great communication among them. Website: www.fhorm.mg 

 Madagascar National Parcs: it is a Malagasy association appointed by the State since 1991 to manage the 
Parks and Reserves of the Island. It currently manages 43 National Parks, Special Reserves and Integral 
Nature Reserves. Its purpose is to conserve the national network of parks and reserves sustainably. 
Website: www.parcs-madagascar.com 

 Confédération du Tourisme de Madagascar: is the tourism confederation of Madagascar, whose purpose 
is to represent and defend the interest of companies within the tourism sector, develop projects and 
influence decisions on sustainable development. Website: www.confederation-tourism.mg 

 TOP (association des tours opérateurs professionnels de Madagascar): the Madagascar tour operators' 
association was created in 1991 for the sole purpose of bringing together quality and hardworking 
professional receptive tour operators in order to develop the tourism sector within the country.  
Website: www.top-madagascar.com 

 FEKRITAMA: is the Madagascar farmers’ confederation, they encourage and facilitate farmers’ social and 
economic life within their communities. Their mission is to defend and encourage all member association 
rights, members operating within the agriculture, livestock, fishery sector, to help them develop their 
communities using their activities. It is made of 12 federations and 22 regional farmers and organizations 
Website: www.fekritama.mg 

 Association fivoarana: was created in 2013, their principal objective is to help develop the communities 
especially in the field of education, telecommunication, culture, transport, communication and the 
environment. Their main fight is against poverty. Website: www.associationfivoarana.wordpress.com 

 FIFATA: it has been created in 1989, qualified as a non-profit organization that unites various 
cooperatives, unions and microfinance institutions within 10 regions of Madagascar. Their goal is to 
advocate for better payments to their peasants, reach a sustainable level of production and management 
of resource so as to achieve food security. Website: www.fifate.org 

 Syndicat des industries de Madagascar (SIM): is a union of Madagascar industries They act as a reliable 
and essential interlocutor between the Malagasy industrial sector, businesses and economic partners. 
Their mission is to provide a sound sector of development while respecting the professional ethics. With 

http://www.sahanala.net/
mailto:federationcci@gmail.com
http://www.fhorm.mg/
http://www.parcs-madagascar.com/
http://www.confederation-tourism.mg/
http://www.fekritama.mg/
http://www.associationfivoarana.wordpress.com/
http://www.fifate.org/
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a purpose of improving entrepreneurial activities within the industries. Being a member of the union 
gives company owners good credibility. Website: www.sim.mg 

 AMIC (Association Malagasy des Investisseurs en Capital): the Malagasy association of capital investors, 
currently has 10 main subscribed members. Together they form an investment portfolio of 400M USD. 
Their mission is to promote entrepreneurship within the country, encourage and prepare future 
investment into various markets, assist businesses in opening a financial and stock account, stimulate 
innovation and the development of businesses. Website: www.amic.mg 

 APIMF (Association Professionelle des Institutions de Micro Finance): The Professional Association of 
Micro Finance Institutions is an association that was created in July 2010. It regroups microfinance 
institutions with a valid license from the banking and financial supervision commission. Their mission 
consists of improving the economic and political environment of their members, represent their 
members at the national and international level and also their interest. Website: www.apimfmada.mg 

 FENAM (Fédération Nationale des Apiculteurs de Madagascar): The National Federation of Beekeepers has 
been legally registered on 6 October 2009. It was created to serve the interest of and promote the 
Malagasy beekeeping business sector. Their vision is to have a very prosperous profitable beekeeping 
sector which will help conserve the country’s biodiversity. Website: www.fenamblog.wordpress.com 

 

  

http://www.sim.mg/
http://www.amic.mg/
http://www.apimfmada.mg/
http://www.fenamblog.wordpress.com/


 //////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////// 
 
pagina 19 van 25 Introduction to the economical market in Madagascar  

7. MOST IMPORTANT WEBSITES 
 CHAMBRE DES MINES MADAGASCAR - chamber of mines Madagascar: 

Phone: +261 11 261 85 
Email: cmm@mineschamber.mg 
Contact: ranjatoelinawilly@gmail.com 
Website: www.mineschamber.mg 

 CHAMBRE DE COMMERCE ET D'INDUSTRIE D'ANTANANARIVO - chamber of commerce and industry of 
Antananarivo 
Address: 20, rue Henry Razanatseheno, BP 166, Antananarivo - Madagascar 
Phone: +261 20 22 202 11 / 12 
Website: www.cci.mg 

 GEM (Groupement de Entreprises de Madagascar) - Madagascar business group 
Address: Ambohijatovo, BP 1338, 101 Antananarivo, Madagascar 
Phone: +261 20 22 238 41 
Fax: +261 20 22 219 65 
Email: gem@iris.mg 
Website: www.gem-madagascar.com 

 DIRECTION GÉNÉRALE DES DOUANES - general directorate of customs 
Address: Immeuble des Finances, Rue Genéral Rabehevitra Antaninarenina, BP 262 Antananarivo – 
Madagascar 
Email: assistance@douanes.mg 
Website: www.douanes.gov.mg 

 EDBM (Economic Development Board of Madagascar) 
Address: Antananarivo Madagascar Amanantsoa Antaninarenina, Immeuble EDBM, Avenue Gal Gabriel 
Phone: +261 20 22 681 21 | +261 20 22 670 40 
Email: edbm@edbm.mg 
Website: www.edbm.mg  

 SMTP Groupe - Malagasy conglomerate , Industrial Group 
Address: Lot 01 A Ambohibao – Antananarivo 105 MADAGASCAR 
Email: contact@groupe-smtp.com 
Phone: +261 020 22 583 73/74 
Website: www.groupe-smtp.com 

 STAR Madagascar - Brewery 
Address: Rue Docteur Joseph Raseta, 101 Antananarivo 
Phone: +261 20 23 277 11 
Website: www.star.mg  

mailto:cmm@mineschamber.mg
mailto:ranjatoelinawilly@gmail.com
http://www.gem-madagascar.com/contact
mailto:assistance@douanes.mg
mailto:edbm@edbm.mg
mailto:contact@groupe-smtp.com
mailto:contact@groupe-smtp.com
http://www.star.mg/
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 ONTM - Office National du Tourisme de Madagascar 
Address: Lot IBG 29C Antsahavola, BP 1780, 101 – Antananarivo 
Phone: +261 20 22 661 15 
Fax.: +261 20 22 660 98 
Website: www.madagascar-tourisme.com 

 HABAKA - Madagascar Innovation Hub 
Phone: +261 034 53 048 38 
Email: contact@habaka.org 
Website: www.habaka.org 

 OMNIS (Office des Mines Nationales et des Industries Stratégiques)  
Address: BP 1bis, Antananarivo 101 - Madagascar 
Phone: +261 20 22 242 83  
Fax: +261 20 22 229 85 
Email: secdg@omnis.mg 

 MCI (Madagascar CONSEIL international) - International law firm governed by a national 
Phone: +261 20 22 295 25 
Website: www.cabinet-mci.com  

 MADAJOB - Recruitment agency 
Address: Lot VB 71 Ambatoroka 
Phone: +261 34 11 801 19 
Email: infos@madajob.mg  
Facebook: www.facebook.com/madajobRH  

 ISA Agribusiness - carry out sustainable agribusiness investments and development projects 
Phone: +261 33 32 634 15 
Email: agribusiness@isa.mg 
Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/isa.agribusiness/  
LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/company/64536484  

 OMAPI (Office Malgache de la Propriété Industrielle) - Malagasy Office of Industrial Property 
Address: LOT VH 69 Volosarika Ambanidia, BP 8237 – Antananarivo, 101, Madagascar 
Phone: +261 20 22 335 02 / +261 34 43 152 36 
Email: omapi@moov.mg  
Website: www.omapi.mg 

 SONAPAR - National Holding Company 
Address: Immeuble SONAPAR - KubeC- 6ème étage, Zone GALAXY Andraharo, BP 719 Antananarivo 101 - 
Madagascar 
Phone: +261 20 23 308 07/ +261 20 23 247 45 
Website: www.sonapar.mg 

http://www.madagascar-tourisme.com/
mailto:contact@habaka.org
http://www.habaka.org/
mailto:secdg@omnis.mg
http://www.cabinet-mci.com/
mailto:infos@madajob.mg
http://www.facebook.com/madajobRH
https://www.facebook.com/isa.agribusiness/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/64536484
mailto:omapi@moov.mg
http://www.omapi.mg/
http://www.sonapar.mg/
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 SEBTP (Syndicat des entrepreneurs du bâtiment et des travaux publics) - Union of building and public 
works contractors 
Address: Lot I A 58 Ampatsakana 101- Antananarivo Madagascar 
Website: www.sebtp-madagascar.com 

 Chambre d'Agriculture ou Tranoben'ny Tantsaha - Chamber of Agriculture 
Address: Bâtiment Ex-Micro Hydraulique 1èr Etage, Nanisana Antananarivo 101 
Phone: +261 34  49 108 26 
Email: aaf.ttmn@gmail.com  
Website: www.tranobenytantsaha.mg  

 

  

http://www.sebtp-madagascar.com/
mailto:aaf.ttmn@gmail.com
http://www.tranobenytantsaha.mg/
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8. BELGIAN PRESENCE IN MADAGASCAR 
In 2020 Madagascar was ranked to be the 119th export market for Flanders amounting to around 36 million 
Euros. Flanders took the 109th place as an importer from Madagascar amounting to around 34  million Euros. 
Madagascar exports fruits and nuts, fish and meat, as well as nickel to Belgium. In terms of imports, 
Madagascar imports automobiles, drugs and pharmaceutical, products chemicals, and cereals.  
 
In Madagascar you will only find the consulate office (listed below), there is no presence of Belgium embassy 
therefore making it challenging for long stay visa request.  
 
Belgian Honorary Consulate 
Address: Groupe Fraise, Rue Ravonanahitriniarivo, Ankorandrano, BP 28, Antananarivo 
Phone: +261 33 370 06 00 
Email: consulatbelgiquemada@yahoo.com  
 
However, Belgians have created a great association between Madagascar and them, with headquarters in 
Belgium. Called: 
 
Association Belgique-Madagascar- Fikambanana Belzika-Madagasikara: The Belgium-Madagascar association 
(ABM) is a non-profit organization under Belgian law recognized as an NGO in Madagascar, created in 1994 
by Paul van der Belen. Its main objective is to support and introduce development programs that will help 
the disadvantaged population groups in Madagascar. The association is primally involved with habitants 
from the bus villages around Morondava, Menabe region on the west coast of Madagascar. Their main 
actions are based on education, supply water to the village, health equipments, improve their tourism 
sector. 
 
Address: Rue Léopold Ier, 266, 1020 Bruxelles (Laeken)   
Phone: +32 2 219 18 55 
Email: a-b-m@skynet.be  
Website: www.a-b-m.eu  
 

  

mailto:consulatbelgiquemada@yahoo.com
mailto:a-b-m@skynet.be
http://www.a-b-m.eu/
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9. CONCLUSION 
Madagascar's vanilla sector is very competitive, owing to the fact that it is still the first producer of vanilla 
worldwide. Although the island has a very rich soil, minerals and a gifted nature reserve, it's high level of 
poverty, corruption and climate disruptions create major constraints when it comes to reaching a great 
level of sustainable development and growth. In addition, the presence of the new pandemic (COVID-19), 
might negatively interfere on the implementation of major development projects within the country.  
 
However, the country is on the right path as it is opening its doors to the world demonstrated by various 
policies implemented to attract foreign investments, creation of various institutions that promote local 
enterprise growth, and a number of cooperatives created to improve the agricultural sector of the republic. 
Hopefully it will all lead to a prosperous island.  
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Disclaimer 
The information in this publication is provided for background information that should enable you to get a picture of the subject treated in this 

document. It is collected with the greatest care based on all data and documentation available at the moment of publication. Thus this publication 

was never intended to be the perfect and correct answer to your specific situation. Consequently it can never be considered a legal, financial or 

other specialized advice. Flanders Investment & Trade (FIT) accepts no liability for any errors, omissions or incompleteness, and no warranty is 

given or responsibility accepted as to the standing of any individual, firm, company or other organization mentioned.  
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